
Page 1 of 2 
 

SCHOOL BOARD MEETING  
KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 

 
Meeting Date:      Wednesday, March 22, 2023 
Time:        5:30 p.m. 
Location:       District Administration Building   
Remote Viewing Access:     http://bit.ly/3ZvRYBw 
Remote Public Comment Sign-Up Form:  https://bit.ly/3dn9dyk 
Interpretación al español estará disponible.  
 

AGENDA  
 

1. Call to Order – 5:30 PM       MICHAEL CONNORS 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Special Recognition 
A. Winter Sports and Activities MATT SCOTT 
B. School Retirees’ Appreciation Week DR. TRACI PIERCE 

  
4. Communications from Parents, Staff, and District Residents 
 
5. Consent Items 
 Approval of Board Minutes 

A. Minutes of School Board Meeting March 8, 2023 
 

Human Resources Reports  
A. Personnel Actions – Certificated, Classified, and Extracurricular 
B. Out of Endorsement Teacher Plans 2022 - 2023 
 

 Business Office Reports 
A. Budget Status Report Ending February 28, 2023 
B. Payroll and Vouchers Ending February 28, 2023 

  
 Legal Items 

A. Resolution No. 5, 2022-2023: Approve Settlement in JUUL Litigation  
 
6. Superintendent/Board Member Report 
 
7. Reports and Discussions 

A. 2023-24 Preliminary Budget  VIC ROBERTS 
B. Asset Preservation  RYAN JONES 
C. Star Assessment Data  ALYSSA ST. HILAIRE 

https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fbit.ly%2F3ZvRYBw&data=05%7C01%7Cpatty.lord%40ksd.org%7C3671222cbddb403e02ed08db20c04e4d%7C00948c2509684d128618b9e148ccfe77%7C0%7C0%7C638139782545866793%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=mS%2BJSn2SGkNGF1%2FJ7m8OAwkUbQyn8zyPVbbjJN27slI%3D&reserved=0
https://bit.ly/3dn9dyk


KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 
DR. TRACI PIERCE 
SECRETARY OF THE BOARD 

Page 2 of 2 

 
 
8. Unfinished Business 

None 
 

9. New Business 
A. Bus Purchase Plan  APRIL HEISER 
B. Board Initiation of Naming Facilities, Southridge High School Gymnasium 

  DR. TRACI PIERCE 
C. Policy No. 5242 PERSONNEL: Staff Participation in Political Activities  

  DR. TRACI PIERCE 
10. Next Meeting Agenda 

A. 2023-24 Preliminary Budget 
B. Annual Staff/Human Resources Update 
C. Community Education and Engagement  

 
11. Other Business as Authorized by Law  

 
12. Executive Session 

A. Per RCW 42.30.110 (1) (i) Legal Issue  
  
13. Adjourn 

 
 



 KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 
 SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
March 8, 2023 

 
 M I N U T E S 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
 

Board Members:  Michael Connors, President of the Board; Diane Sundvik, Legislative 
Representative of the Board; Micah Valentine, Board Member; London Moody, Student 
Representative to the Board; and Dr. Traci Pierce, Superintendent and Secretary of the 
Board. 
 
Cabinet Members: Dr. Doug Christensen, Associate Superintendent of Human 
Resources; Matt Scott, Assistant Superintendent of K-12 Education; Rob Phillips, 
Assistant Superintendent of Elementary Education; Vic Roberts, Executive Director of 
Business Operations; Robyn Chastain, Executive Director of Communications and Public 
Relations; Ron Cone, Executive Director of Information Technology.  
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
 President Michael Connors called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. and led the Pledge of 

Allegiance with approximately 56 online and in-person staff and guests in attendance. 
 
RECOGNITION 
 
 Education Support Professionals Week 
 
 Superintendent Dr. Pierce shared about the many Education Support Professionals who make 

Kennewick schools great for staff, students, and families. Dr. Pierce read Governor Inslee’s 
proclamation declaring March 5-11, 2023, as Education Support Professionals Week. 

 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM PARENTS, STAFF, AND RESIDENTS 
  
 Joan Hue commented that she is glad that the levy passed. She asked the Board to  
 enlarge their vision to include and embrace all the diverse citizens of Kennewick, 

whether they are independent, conservative, republican, or democratic voters. 
 
 Tina Gregory commented that she believes the only flag in the classroom should be the 

American flag. She stated that she would like prayer in the schools and a prayer month 
like there is a pride month. Ms. Gregory added that she is glad the levy passed. 

 
 Nicole Carby stated that the Board would receive an email from her regarding 

discrimination in the Kennewick School District. Ms. Carby asked each Board member if 
they knew that children attending school in the Kennewick School District were required 
to pray to the Hindu gods based off the current curriculum in ancient history without 
parent knowledge or consent. She asked that it be noted that the KSD attorneys Brown & 
Rio are members of the LDS church and were involved in the 2011 situation with her 
daughter that speaks to the premeditated component regarding content; she stated that 
they are also the City Prosecutors for the City of Richland. 



Minutes 
March 8, 2023 
Page 2 
 
 
  
CONSENT ITEMS 
 
 Motion by Diane Sundvik to approve the consent items as presented. 
 
 Seconded by Ron Mabry. 
 
  Roll call vote:  Mr. Connors  Yes 
     Mr. Mabry  Yes 
     Ms. Sundvik  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Mr. Galbraith  Abstain 
 Motion carried 4-0. 
 
 The consent items were as follows: 
 

• Minutes of Regular Board Meeting February 22, 2023 
• Personnel Actions – Certificated, Classified, and Extracurricular 
• Budget Status Report Ending January 31, 2023 
• Payroll and Vouchers Ending January 31, 2023 
• Candidates for Early Graduation 

 
SUPERINTENDENT/BOARD MEMBER REPORT 
 
 Superintendent Dr. Traci Pierce shared an update on the Safety Officers and SROs. She 

stated that the goal is to post positions within the next week or two and begin hiring 
Safety Officers who would begin at the start of the school year in August. Dr. Pierce 
reported that after talking with the City and Kennewick Police Department, based on their 
staffing and training plans, the goal is to have one middle school SRO placed at the start 
of the school year and the other two placed by January. 

 
 Dr. Pierce shared that she had the privilege to read at Sunset View Elementary and 

Canyon View Elementary during Read Across America Week and attended the DARE 
graduation at Ridge View. She added a thank you to the staff involved in last night’s 
Classified Job Fair.  

 
 Due to Student Representative to the Board, London Moody, not feeling well, Dr. Pierce 

provided her report for her. She shared that the Superintendent’s Student Advisory Council 
looked at the district's three student focus goals, and students provided feedback about what 
was going well this year and what could be improved.  

 
 Board Member Gabe Galbraith reported that he read to students at Sunset View Elementary 

School on Read Across America Day. He also attended the Read Across America Day at 
Canyon View, Cascade, and Sage Crest Elementary Schools. Mr. Galbraith shared that he 
attended Westgate STEM night, Fuerza Kids Day in Engineering, and checked out the job 
fair last night, adding kudos to HR and those who put the event together. 

 



Minutes 
March 8, 2023 
Page 3 
 
 
 Board Member Micah Valentine shared that he met with some teachers about issues and 

questions they had, met with some staff about identifying challenges with students who have 
trouble reading, and met with two groups of people regarding social media. Mr. Valentine 
also reported reading to fourth graders at Sunset View, serving as a judge for the Tri-
Tech/Sodexo Future Chefs Competition, and attending the Math is Cool 5th-grade 
championship. 

 
 Board Member Diane Sundvik shared that she attended the WSSDA Legislative 

Representative Networking Hour (two sessions), WASA/WSSDA/WASBO Legislative 
Conference and Day on the Hill, and KEY Connections. She also reported that she was a 
reader at Read Across America Day at Sunset View Elementary. Ms. Sundvik said that she 
served as a judge for the Tri-Tech/Sodexo Future Chefs Competition and the Math is Cool 
5th-grade championship. 

 
 Board Member Ron Mabry reported attending the WASA/WSSDA/WASBO Legislative 

Conference and Day on the Hill. 
 
 Board President Mike Connors reported attending the WASA/WSSDA/WASBO Legislative 

Conference and Day on the Hill, reading to kindergartners at Sunset View Elementary 
School, and attending the Fuerza Engineering Day put on by Energy Northwest.  

 
REPORTS AND DISCUSSIONS  
 
 Tribal Collaboration Update 
  

Superintendent Dr. Traci Pierce shared an update on tribal collaboration with the Yakama 
Tribal Council regarding school branding, mascots, curriculum, classroom education 
activities, and the formation of Tribal Collaboration and Education Committees. She shared 
a district Land Acknowledgement approved by the Tribal Council. She also shared that the 
first Tribal Collaboration and Education Committee Meeting will be held on March 16. 

 
 Academic Progress Update  
  

Assistant Superintendent of Teaching & Learning Alyssa St. Hilaire presented progress 
toward meeting performance indicators in early learning, elementary, middle, and high 
schools. Mrs. St. Hilaire reviewed the reporting calendar and discussed multi-tiered 
support systems. 
 

 2023 - 2024 Preliminary Budget 
  

Executive Director of Business Operations Vic Roberts presented the Transportation 
Vehicle Fund with a proposal of purchasing eight buses for delivery summer of 2024 and 
added that Transportation Director, April Heiser, will present at the March 22 Board 
meeting. Mr. Roberts ended by reviewing the Debt Service Fund and gave a budget 
timeline showing June 21 as the date for Board adoption of the 2023-2024 budget. 
 
 



Minutes 
March 8, 2023 
Page 4 
 
 
 Legislative Update 
  

Superintendent Dr. Traci Pierce reported on the status of key legislative issues, including 
special education funding, transportation funding, and Transitional Kindergarten. Dr. 
Pierce also noted other bills of interest. 

 
NEXT MEETING AGENDA 
 
The Board reviewed items for the next meeting agenda:  
 

A. 2023-24 Preliminary Budget 
B. Asset Preservation 
C. Southridge High School – Gym Naming 
D. Policy 5252, Staff Participation in Political Activities  

 
 
OTHER BUSINESS AS AUTHORIZED BY LAW. 
 
 There being no further business, the Board adjourned at 7:21 p.m. 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ _____________________________ 
RECORDING SECRETARY PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 SECRETARY OF THE BOARD 
 
Approved:  March 22, 2023 



CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL
ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE, TRANSFERS AND TERMINATIONS

Exhibit A: Lists new employment contracts, requests for leaves of absence, and terminations which have occurred for certificated 
employees since the last meeting of the Board of Directors.

Name School Position Justification FTE Date

Julie Sumsion DHMS Teacher - MS LOA (1st) 1.0 2023-24
Michelle Williams MCP Teacher - HS LOA (2nd) .3 of 1.0 2023-24
Isabel Child MCP Teacher - K-5 LOA (2nd) .22 of 1.0 2023-24
Brenda Reed Amistad Teacher - Elem LOA (2nd) 1.0 2023-24
Adriana Wideen Lincoln Teacher - Elem LOA (1st) 1.0 2023-24

Caitlin  Thompson Hawthorne Teacher - Elem LOA (1st) 1.0
Eff. 5/12/23 to 

eoy

Kristen Daugs Park MS Teacher - MS 1.0 6/30/2023
Carrie Armstrong SSV Teacher - Elem 1.0 8/31/2023
Lori Quinn Washington Teacher - Elem 1.0 6/14/2023
Peggi Doggett Highlands MS Teacher - MS 1.0 6/30/2023
Brenda Coomes Chinook MS Teacher - MS 1.0 6/30/2023
David Ohlmeier SrHS Teacher - HS 1.0 6/30/2023
Michael D. Baker DHMS Teacher - MS 1.0 8/31/2023
Victoria Mackay Spec Services Speech Lang. Pathologist Resigning .40 fte. .4 of 1.0 6/14/2023
Kaci Lemon Canyon View Teacher - Elem Moving to  sub pool 1.0 6/20/2023
Abby Pierce Spec Services Psychologist 1.0 6/14/2023
Elizabeth Fleming KaHS Teacher - HS Resigning teaching position 0.6 3/16/2023

Jordan Snyder Washington Teacher - Elem Garcia resignation 1.0 2023-24

RESIGNATIONS

IN DISTRICT 
TRANSFERS

DATE: Wednesday, March 22, 2023

EXHIBIT A 

NEW POSITONS
REHIRE
REPLACEMENT
LEAVE OF ABSENCE

LEAVE OF ABSENCE 
REPLACEMENT
RETIREMENTS

3/22/2023 Page 1



CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS

Name School Position Justification Hours Date

Madison Enriquez Amon Creek Para/SS/Resource Room Program Need 6.0 3/20/2023

James Barrett Transportation Bus Driver 4.25 3/1/2023

Iyan Walker Transportation Bus Driver 4.67 2/27/2023

Nelly Garibaldo-

Hernandez
Eastgate Para/FP/BE

Replaces Marcelina Carrillo 

Gonzalez
6.5 3/10/2023

Becky Detloff Transportation Bus Driver

Correction - mistakenly listed as 

resignation on 3/8/23 board 

report

4.58 2/23/2023

Anna Meyer Kennewick Para/FP/LAP Replaces Teresa Doppelmayr 7.0 3/15/2023

Debbie Garcia Southgate Para/SS/Tier II Autism Replaces Chris Washam 6.0 3/14/2023

Fallon Mayer Southgate

Para/FP/Multilingual 

Learners/Safety & 

Supervision

Replaces Amy Porter 6.25 3/13/2023

Lorena Hernandez Fuerza Para/FP/BE/Bilingual Replaces Jennifer Campos 6.5 3/16/2023

Brenda Rincon Fuerza Para/FP/BE/Bilingual Replaces Adriana Guzman 6.5 3/23/2023

Rachel Simpson ECEAP Para/ECEAP Replaces Jason Valencia 8.0 3/21/2023

Jo Cravens Highlands Lead Secretary 8.0 3/9/2023

Grace Crary Kennewick Para/SS/LifeSkills 6.5 3/29/2023

Lisette Gonzalez ECEAP Para/ECEAP 8.0 3/29/2023

Pablo Gil Highlands Para/FP/ELL/ESL 6.0 3/29/2023

Rylee Gentner KDC Para/SS/OT/PT 6.0 8/31/2023

Otilia Madrigal ECEAP Para/ECEAP To student teach 8.0 3/27/2023

Brandon Searls N/A Para To sub teach N/A 3/31/2023

Mike Picicci Kamiakin Assistant Lead Custodian 8.0 3/31/2023

Rhonda Garvin KDC Secretary 8.0 8/31/2023

Teresa Brown KDC Para/SS/OT/PT 7.0 8/31/2023

RETURN FROM LOA Diana Castro Castrejon Canyon View Para/SS/Tier II Behavior 6.0 4/10/2023

REPLACEMENT

TERMINATION

EXHIBIT B: Lists new employment personnel actions and terminations for classified employees that have occurred since the last meeting of the Board of Directors

EXHIBIT B

DATE: March 22, 2023

LAYOFF

NEW POSITONS

RESIGNED FROM LOA

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

RESIGNATION

REHIRE

RETIREMENT

3/17/2023 AM



Page 1 
 

 
EXTRACURRICULAR 

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS 
Exhibit C:  Lists new employment contracts and terminations that have occurred for supplemental contracts since the last meeting of the Board of Directors. 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  Wednesday, March 22, 2023 

EXHIBIT C 
SUPPLEMENTAL CONTRACTS 

ELECTIONS AND TERMINATIONS 
NAME SCHOOL POSITION JUSTIFICATION HOURS DATE 

NEW POSITIONS Keri Rush Horse Heaven Hills Assistant Softball .5 TE – Replaces Reilyn Davis  2022-2023 Sc Yr 
REPLACEMENTS Aubrey Haskell Horse Heaven Hills Assistant Softball Replaces Chanti Brisby   

 Ries Cope Horse Heaven Hills Assistant Baseball Replaces Paul Duncan  
2022-2023 Sc Yr 

 Heather Morrow Desert Hills MS Assistant Softball Emergency Hire – Rehire  2022-2023 Sc Yr 
 Matt Patterson Desert Hills MS Assistant Track Emergency Hire – Replaces  Tyrell Finney  2022-2023 Sc Yr 
 Karyn Jamison Desert Hills MS Assistant Softball Emergency Hire – Replaces  Kathleen Clark  2022-2023 Sc Yr 
 Michael Bibe Kennewick HS Assistant Football Replaces .5 FTE Ty Cronenwett  2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Donald Ramos Kennewick HS Assistant Football  Replaces .5 FTE Ty Cronenwett  2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Daniela Ramirez Horse Heaven Hills Assistant Softball Emergency Hire .5 FTE  2022-2023 Sc Yr 
 Shane Arstein Horse Heaven Hills Assistant Baseball Emergency Hire  2022-2023 Sc Yr 
 Easton Wensveen Highlands MS Assistant Baseball Emergency Hire  2022-2023 Sc Yr 
 Robert Oram Kennewick HS Assistant Football Replaces Shawn Harper  2022-2023 Sc Yr 
      2022-2023 Sc Yr 

      2022-2023 Sc Yr 

      2022-2023 Sc Yr 

      2022-2023 Sc Yr 

      2022-2023 Sc Yr 

      2022-2023 Sc Yr 

      2023-2024 Sc Yr 

LEAVE OF ABSENCE NAME SCHOOL POSITION COMMENTS DATE 
     2023-2024 Sc Yr 
     2023-2024 Sc Yr 
     2023-2024 Sc Yr 
RESIGNATIONS NAME SCHOOL POSITION COMMENTS   

     2022-2023 Sc Yr 
     2023-2024 Sc Yr 
     2022-2023 Sc Yr 
     2023-2024 Sc Yr 

     2023-2024 Sc Yr 

     2022-2023 Sc Yr 

     2023-2024 Sc Yr 

     2022-2023 Sc Yr 

 





































 
Kennewick School District #17, 1000 W. 4th Ave., Kennewick, WA 99336 
 

  Resolution No. 5 
2022 – 2023 

 
RESOLUTION TO APPROVE SETTLEMENT IN JUUL LITIGATION 

 
WHEREAS, the School District is currently engaged in multi-district litigation against JUUL 
Labs, Inc. F/K/A PAX Labs, Inc.; James Monsees; Adam Bowen; Nicholas Pritzker; Hoyoung 
Huh; Riaz Valani; Altria Group, Inc.; Altria Client Services LLC; Altria Group Distribution 
Company; and Philip Morris USA, Inc., (the “Litigation”); and 

WHEREAS,  the Juul Defendants (as defined below) have reached a tentative agreement to settle 
the matters in dispute (“Settlement Agreement”) while the Altria Defendants (as defined below) 
have not; and 

WHEREAS, the Juul Defendants include JUUL Labs, Inc. F/K/A PAX Labs, Inc.; James 
Monsees; Adam Bowen; Nicholas Pritzker; Hoyoung Huh; and Riaz Valani; while the Altria 
Defendants include Altria Group, Inc.; Altria Client Services LLC; Altria Group Distribution 
Company; and Philip Morris USA, Inc.; and     

WHEREAS, the Settlement Agreement with the Juul Defendants has been presented to the Board 
for final approval and the Board understands the Litigation with the Altria Defendants is ongoing; 
and  

WHEREAS, the Board, after consideration of all factors, has determined that it is in the best 
interest of the School District to approve the Settlement Agreement with the Juul Defendants. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board hereby approves the Settlement 
Agreement and will take all necessary steps to effectuate the Settlement Agreement. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board directs the Superintendent to execute the 
necessary documents to effectuate the Settlement Agreement.  

The resolution was adopted on March 22, 2023.  

ATTEST _____________________________ _______________________________ 
       Secretary, Board of Directors  President, Board of Directors 

            
       _______________________________ 

      Vice President, Board of Directors 
             
       _______________________________ 

      Member of the Board of Directors  
 

      _______________________________ 
       Member of the Board of Directors  
              

      _______________________________ 
       Member of the Board of Directors  



General Fund 
2023-24 Preliminary Budget 

Update

March 22, 2023



2

Revenue Source (Basic Ed/Local Funded) One-Time Adjustments
Projected Change

Amount

Enrollment Projected Higher than Budget +$1,400,000 less CTE enrollment decrease ($850,000) $550,000

Special Education Enrollment Higher than Budget $22.5M to $24.6M 2,100,000

Transportation Funding $7.8M to $9.9M (Ridership counts back up, inflation adjustment to formula) 2,100,000

Property Tax Collections for 2022-23 Lower than Budget $8.1M to $7.7M (2022 Taxes + Delinquent) (400,000)

Other Revenues 750,000

Total Basic Ed & Local Funded $5,100,000

Expenditures Projected

Amount

Staff Costs Less than Budget (Unfilled Positions and Vacant Positions) $4,000,000

Projected Revenue & Expenditure Changes From Budget $9,100,000

General Fund 
Projected Revenue & Expenditure Changes

School Year 2022-23



3



4

Preliminary Basic Ed Revenue Changes
School Year 2023-24

Revenue Source (Basic Ed/Local Funded) Increases
Projected
Amount

Basic Ed Enrollment (Increased enrollment > than budget for 2022-23/not expecting decrease for 
2023-24) $550,000

Special Education Enrollment (Increased enrollment > than budget for 2022-23)/not expecting 
decrease for 2023-24) 2,100,000

Special Education Formula Adjustments (Legislature - multiplier increase/funding cap increase) ??

Transportation Funding (Should expect to receive 2022-23 funding of $9.9M) 2,100,000

Inflationary Formula Allocation Adjustment – Legislature - Pass Through To Staff 4,540,000

Employer Benefit Allocation & Health Insurance Allocation ($12,312 to $13,260 per year health ins) 1,400,000

Materials, Supplies & Operating Cost (MSOC) (Inflation Adjustment – Legislature) 800,000

Formula Adjustment For Social Emotional Learning (SEL) Staff (counselors/nurse/safety/psych) 1,750,000

Property Tax (Collect 2024 taxes January 2024 – August 2024) $8.13M to $12.38M 4,250,000 

Levy Equalization  ($4.05M to $9.78M) 5,730,000

Total Preliminary Revenue Change $23,220,000



5

Staffing Costs Projected Amount

2022-23 Added Staff/Adding Levy Reduced Staff Back/Bargained Costs Not In Budget $1,500,000

Elementary Safety Officers 1,200,000

Elementary Cert Staff – Add 1.0 At Cascade 85,000

Middle School Teaching Staff  (No Expected Changes) -

High School Teaching Staff – (No Expected Changes) -

MCP Online & Endeavor Staffing (Under Review)  ??

Special Education Certificated & Para Staff (Under Review) requesting additional cert staff 
and additional para hours +$$$$. 

??

Added Counselor Staff (Evaluating) ??

Other Support/Operations/Maintenance Staffing (No expected changes) ??

Projected Increase In Staff Costs/Inflationary Adjustments/Employer Benefits ??

Teacher Retirements ??

Certificated/Classified Pools  $12.5M (Overload/Subs/Coaches/Extra Pay/Etc.) ?? 

Re-allocate Staff Costs to Other Program Funding Sources ??

Preliminary Basic Ed/Local Funded Staff Cost Change ? $14.0M - $15.0M ?

2023-24 Preliminary Staff Cost Changes

2023-24 Preliminary MSOC Budget Changes
Utilities/Insurance/Other  (Evaluating) $1,500,000



6

District Funded Wage & Benefit Cost vs State Funded



• Budgeted revenues were well short of expenditures prior to 2023 levy failure.

• Levy passed by voters last month was at much lower amounts than the levy for 2023 that failed. 
• Maximum levy rate allowed is $2.50
• District is well below $2.50 at $1.73/$1.68/$1.63 for 2024-26.

• 2022-23 enrollment increased slightly over 2021-22.
• Can’t rely on significant enrollment increase to generate funding.

• Increased cost of living adjustments through the state add significant costs to the district; the 
higher the adjustment = higher cost to the district.

• State does not fully fund staff costs. District pays cost increases on the portion of district 
funded costs. 

• This is the primary reason districts are at or approaching a $2.50 levy rate.

• Recent increases in new state funding are not flexible. Need to add staff to receive the funding.

• District will use ESSER for 2023-24 and & Fund Balance for 2024-25/2025-26 to support 
continued operations and staffing. 

• Some budget reductions due to Levy failure may not be added back in 2023-24. 
• ESSER continues to fund some staff positions supporting lower class sizes.

• Those positions will need to be reviewed after 2023-24 when ESSER expires.  
• ESSER funding supports contracted Mental Health Services at secondary schools. 

• Budget Outlook 2023/24 to 2025/26 and beyond
• Revenues well short of expenditures (short by $5.0M to $10.M each school year).
• Use ESSER to increase fund balance to weather next three years.
• Manage budget and staffing costs.
• Evaluate levy amounts for 2027 – district is well below the maximum allowed of $2.50.

7

Budget Outlook



8



9



• Senate & House Budget Proposals Released By March 27th
• March – April: OSPI To Update Allocation Models

• Projected changes to district funding confirmed.
• March – April: District Staffing Reviewed
• April – May: Budget Presentations – General Fund/Other Funds
• April 23: Scheduled End Of Legislative Session
• June 21: Public Hearing & Adoption of District Budget

10

Next Steps & Budget Timeline



Asset Preservation 
Program Update

March 22, 2023

1



WAC 392-347-023 and KSD Policy 9300
State funding assistance for post-1993 facilities

School districts with affected buildings under this chapter are required to:
• Adopt or implement and asset preservation system.
• Perform annual building condition evaluations, which shall include recording 

assessments in the ICOS system and reporting assessment scores to the school 
district’s board of directors not later than April 1st of each year.

• Ensure a certified evaluator completes a building condition evaluation every 6 
years.
o Last certified evaluation was in March 2020

2

State Law and Policy Requirements



3

Building Assessment Scores

New Scoring System in 2018 Action
Excellent 100% Range 95-100% Routine Maintenance
Good 90% Range 85-94% Routine Maintenance
Fair 62% Range 62-84% Minor Repairs
Poor 30% Range 30-61% Major Repairs

Unsatisfactory 0% Range 0-29% Replacement

• 60 Inspection Points for each site
• Must maintain scores above 62% to maintain SCAP funding status



Asset Preservation Facilities

• Southridge High School Main Building
• Desert Hills Middle School Main Building
• Eastgate Elementary School Main Building 
• Ridge View Elementary School Main Building
• Horse Heaven Hills Middle School Main Building
• Horse Heaven Hills Middle School Gymnasium
• Sage Crest Elementary School Main Building
• Cottonwood Elementary School Main Building
• Westgate Elementary School Main Building

4

*In addition to the facilities designated for required reporting, the Kennewick School District 
assesses all school facilities



5

Building Assessment Scores
Southridge HVAC Example – HVAC Upgrades Scheduled for 2020-2021

2020

2022





Comments 
and 

Questions

7



Follow Up:
K-12 Academic Progress Update

All Students are Engaged Learners

March 22, 2023





Performance Indicators 

• Specific to each grade level
• Include multiple measures 
• Focused on growth and proficiency in:

oReading/ELA
oMath
oEnglish Language Acquisition
oScience
oOn Track for Graduation: Credit Acquisition and Passing Grades
oDual Credit and Preparation for Post-Secondary
oGraduation and Preparation for Post-Secondary or Work 

• Growth Targets

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Just as a reminder, we carefully track student growth and proficiency each year, and we look at multiple data points at each grade level.



Elementary and Middle School 
Reading and Math Growth Targets

Grade Level Growth Targets 

Grades K-2 ≥50% of all students are progressing from “intensive” to “strategic” or from “strategic” 
to “benchmark” from fall to spring on DIBELS

Grades 3 - 4 ≥90% of all students are making expected spring to spring growth on the MAP reading 
and math assessments

Grades  5 – 8 ≥90% of all students are making expected spring to spring growth on the MAP reading 
and math assessments

≥50% of all students are progressing from their prior year SBA from L1 to L2 or from 
L2 to L3 on the reading  and math SBA

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
At the elementary and middle school level, our annual growth targets are based on student growth in early literacy, reading, and math as measured by the DIBELS assessment, MAP assessment, and Smarter Balanced Assessment. 



Progress Monitoring 

• Classroom-based 
assessments

• DIBELS assessment
• MAP assessment 
• Star assessments
• SBA interim assessments 
• Other

Grade Level 
Standards 

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
When it comes to monitoring progress of students throughout the year, schools use a variety of different assessments. Schools can use different assessment  instruments to monitor student progress toward meeting growth targets, as long as the instruments are aligned to grade level standards. As we noted during the last presentation, a number of schools are using Star assessments, and finding the data very useful to guide instruction and intervention. So, we want to share Star information and data with you. 



Star 
Assessments

• Star assessments are:

• Standards-aligned universal 
screening and progress monitoring 
tools

• Computer-adaptive
• Available to determine both math 

and reading proficiency
• Timed - about 20 minutes to assess



Benefits of 
Star 

Assessments 

• Reliable predictor of annual 
achievement outcomes on state 
summative tests

• Recommended by OSPI

• Analyzes data for teachers to target 
interventions and acceleration

• Provides standards-based data to 
focus instruction for teachers

• Can be used for LAP growth 
reporting

• Meets Dyslexia screening 
requirements

• Available in English and Spanish



Star Math

• Amon Creek 
• Cascade 
• Edison 
• Hawthorne 
• Lincoln 
• Southgate 
• Washington

Grade Level 
Math

% of students who made 
expected fall to winter 
growth

Grade 1 66.2%
(321 of 485 students)

Grade 2 72% 
(368 of 511 students)

Grade 3 64.9%
(305 of 470 students)

Grade 4 64.6%
(309 of  478 students)

Grade 5 72.5%
(338 of 466 students)

Total 68%
(1,690 of 2,482 students)



Comments/Questions 



Transportation 
Department

Bus Purchase Plan

March 22, 2023



Transportation 
Department

• 127 Bus Drivers 
• 39 Bus Attendants
• 7 Mechanics & 1 Shop 

Foreman
• 4 Dispatchers/Routers
• 2 Transportation 

Secretaries
• Transportation 

Coordinator
• Assistant Director
• Director 



Fleet Summary & Depreciation
• 139 Buses on our fleet as of today with 7 additional buses being delivered in 

August 2023

• 112 buses currently on the depreciation schedule

• Type C and Type D category bus – 13 years for the State to completely 
reimburse the base cost of a bus without district options

• 19% of our buses are off the depreciation schedule
o Most buses in service for 20 years

• Requesting to surplus 7 buses from 1997, 2001, 2003, 2004



Future Planning 
• State of Washington Clean Fuel Standard

o Unclear on upcoming changes to our industry
 Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) is re-evaluating the impact on school buses
 Diesel engine manufacturers are working to meet the low carbon mandates

• The EPA issued $500M of grants in 2022 and will continue with grant funding for next 5 years
o 4 school districts in state received funding
o Grant was targeted toward rural/poverty areas
o Grant funding does not cover the full cost of electric bus or the full cost of infrastructure
o Infrastructure only funded at $20K per bus

• District Challenges
o Cost prohibitive at this time to purchase electric buses
o Cost prohibitive to install charging infrastructure

• District Approach
o Continue to evaluate grant opportunities
o Replace diesel engine buses prior to elimination of this option



Air Conditioning

• Priority:  Purchase enough buses with air conditioning to support our 
summer school programs

o After summer 2024 - we will have 15 air-conditioned buses

o Target is 25 – 30 for supporting summer school



Past Bus 
Purchase 
History 



2023 Bus Purchase Plan 
Estimated Bus Purchase Cost:

• The cost will be charged to the 2023/2024 budget.
• Transportation ending cash at August 31, 2023 is projected at $544,000. 
• In August 2024, the district expects to receive $1,240,000 from the state for bus replacement for a total 

of $1,784,000 to apply toward the purchase of eight buses.  

Recommendation:  
Authorize Transportation Director to order eight buses for delivery summer 2024.



Board 
Discussion



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

VIC ROBERTS • Director of Business Operations 
1000 W. 4TH AVE. • KENNEWICK, WA 99336-5601 
P: (509) 222-5040  
Vic.Roberts@ksd.org  WWW.KSD.ORG 
 

 
DATE:  March 22, 2023 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Vic Roberts, Executive Director, Business Operations 

RE:  Authorize Purchase of Eight Buses For Delivery Summer 2024 
Transportation Director April Heiser is finalizing an order to purchase eight buses for 
delivery for summer 2024.  The purchase would allow for replacing older buses that 
have been in service from 1997 as well as buses with the highest cost per mile. Plans 
are to surplus 7 buses.  Current Fleet at August 31, 2022, was 139 Buses. 

Past bus purchase history (delivery year/# purchased) 

       
 
Estimated Bus Purchase Cost: 

 
The cost will be charged to the 2023/2024 budget. Transportation ending cash at 
August 31, 2023 is projected at $544,000. In August 2024 the district expects to receive 
$1,240,000 from the state for bus replacement for a total of $1,784,000 to apply toward 
the purchase of eight buses.    

Recommendation:  Authorize Transportation Director to order eight buses for 
delivery summer 2024. 



Board Initiation of Naming 
Facilities Within a Building 

March 22, 2023 





Community Engagement in Facility Naming

Policy 9250 Naming of School District Facilities

“Facilities within a building – such as gyms, fields, libraries, etc. 
– shall be named at the initiation of the School Board.” 



Community Engagement in Facility Naming

Policy 9250 R Procedure
“If the Board decides to name a part of a facility or the grounds, 
the community will be solicited to suggest names for that 
facility. A community-wide process will be initiated to look at all 
names for consideration which might be deserving of such a 
recognition. 

The Superintendent or designee shall select a committee whose 
purpose shall be to review the submissions and the rationale for 
the submissions and make a recommendation to the School 
Board for naming the facility. The Superintendent or designee 
shall give the submission along with the Committee 
recommendation to the School Board for final approval.” 



Community Engagement in Facility Naming 

Recommendation
The Board discuss and determine whether to initiate a naming 
process for the Southridge High School gymnasium.



Staff Participation in 
Political Activities 

March 22, 2023



Current Situation 

• State Law and Public 
Disclosure Commission 
(PDC) guidelines govern 
what school districts and 
school district employees 
can and can’t do, on district 
time using district 
resources, related to 
political campaigns

This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-SA

https://thebluediamondgallery.com/legal08/l/law.html
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-sa/3.0/


RCW 42.17A.555
Use of public office or agency facilities in campaigns –
Prohibition – Exceptions 

No elective official nor any employee of his or her office nor any person appointed to or 
employed by any public office or agency may use or authorize the use of any of the facilities of a 
public office or agency, directly or indirectly, for the purpose of assisting a campaign for election 
of any person to any office or for the promotion of or opposition to any ballot proposition. 
Facilities of a public office or agency include, but are not limited to, use of stationery, postage, 
machines, and equipment, use of employees of the office or agency during working hours, 
vehicles, office space, publications of the office or agency, and clientele lists of persons served 
by the office or agency. However, this does not apply to the following activities:

(1) Action taken at an open public meeting by members of an elected legislative body or by an 
elected board, council, or commission of a special purpose district including, but not limited to, 
fire districts, public hospital districts, library districts, park districts, port districts, public utility 
districts, school districts, sewer districts, and water districts, to express a collective decision, or 
to actually vote upon a motion, proposal, resolution, order, or ordinance, or to support or oppose 
a ballot proposition so long as (a) any required notice of the meeting includes the title and 
number of the ballot proposition, and (b) members of the legislative body, members of the 
board, council, or commission of the special purpose district, or members of the public are 
afforded an approximately equal opportunity for the expression of an opposing view;
(2) A statement by an elected official in support of or in opposition to any ballot proposition at 
an open press conference or in response to a specific inquiry;
(3) Activities which are part of the normal and regular conduct of the office or agency.
(4) This section does not apply to any person who is a state officer or state employee as defined 
in RCW 42.52.010.

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=42.52.010


Public Disclosure Commission 

Teachers or Other Employees 
• May speak at community forums and clubs to present an objective and fair 

presentation of the facts on a ballot measure during regular work hours.
• May inform staff during non-work hours of opportunities to participate in campaign 

activities.
• May engage in campaign activities on their own time, during non-work hours and 

without using public resources.
• May respond to questions regarding a ballot measure if such activity is consistent 

with his or her normal and regular duties.
• May wear campaign buttons or similar items while on the job if the district's policy 

generally permits employees to wear political buttons.
• May, during non-work hours, make available campaign materials to employees in 

lunchrooms and break rooms, which are used only by staff or other authorized 
individuals.

• May place window signs or bumper stickers on their privately-owned cars, even if 
those cars are parked on school property during working hours.

• May encourage staff and members of the public to vote, as long as such 
encouragement routinely occurs for other elections



Current Situation 

• There is WSSDA 
Model Policy 
5252 - Staff 
Participation in 
Political 
Activities

• WSSDA’s 5252 is 
not currently in 
our KSD Board 
policies 

• Model Policy 
5252 does not 
speak to buttons 



Recommendation 

• The Board discuss and consider adopting policy 5242 – Staff 
Participation in Political Activities 



5242 
 

PERSONNEL 
 
Staff Participation in Political Activities  
 
The Board recognizes the right of its employees, as citizens, to engage in political activities. A 
staff member may seek an elective office provided that the staff member does not campaign on 
district property during working hours. District property and work time, supported by public 
funds, may not be used for political purposes. District employees may not wear campaign 
buttons or other campaign materials advocating for or against a specific initiative, referendum, 
ballot measure, candidate, or political campaign during work hours.  
 
  
In the event the staff member is elected to office, the employee may request a leave of absence in 
accordance with the leave policies of the district or the provisions of any applicable collective 
bargaining agreement. District employees who hold elective or appointive public office in an 
organization are not entitled to time off from their district duties for reasons incident to such 
offices unless the circumstances surrounding the leave request qualify under leave policies of the 
district. 
  
 
Legal Reference: RCW    41.06.250 Political activities. 
              42.17A.555 Use of public office or agency facilities in 

campaigns – Prohibition – Exceptions. 
              42.17A.635 Legislative activities of state agencies, other 

units of government, elective officials, 
employees.  

      
 
Adopted: March 22, 2023 
 


	School Board Meeting Agenda 03-22-2023
	CONSENT ITEMS
	School Board Meeting Minutes 03-08-2023
	Personnel Action Items - Certificated
	Personnel Action Items - Classified
	Personnel Action Items - Extracurricular
	Out of Endorsement Teacher Plans 2022-23
	Payroll and Vouchers Ending February 28, 2023
	Budget Status Report Ending February 28, 2023
	Resolution No. 5, 2022-2023: Approve Settlement in JUUL Litigation

	REPORTS AND DISCUSSIONS
	2023-24 Preliminary Budget
	Asset Preservation
	Star Assessment Data

	NEW BUSINESS
	Bus Purchase Plan
	Memo: Authorize Purchase of Eight Buses

	Board Initiation of Naming Facilities Within a Building
	Staff Participation in Political Activities
	Policy No. 5252 PERSONNEL: Staff Participation in Political Activities





